
Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 1 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
 

 

TOWN MEETING AGENDA 
TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18TH, 2023 AT 7:00 PM 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. FUTURE MEETINGS  

Town Board Meeting: Monday, February 6, 2023 at 7:00 pm (Town Office & Zoom) 
Planning Committee Meeting: Monday, January 30, 2023 at 7:00 pm (Town Office & Zoom) 
MEETING ITEMS  

A. APPROVE MINUTES: December 6th, 2022 and December 12th, 2022 
B. POLICE REPORT  
C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT  
E. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
F. MAYOR’S COMMENTS  
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
H. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS (NONE) 
I. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Appoint of Melissa Mckenney to the Citizen Advisory Committee with a term of 
January 18, 2023 to January 18, 2025. 

J. TREASURER’S REPORT 
K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT  
L. AGENDA ITEMS (DETAILS ATTACHED) 

1) For consideration, approval of Bearing Construction change order for removal of 
trees on dam at the Silo Hill Basin. 

a. Mandatory requirement from Frederick County Soil Conservation per 
MDE guidelines. 

2) For consideration, approval of agreement with Barton and Loguidice for Silo Hill 
Basin tree removal engineering services.  

a. Part of the change order request that was not in the initial scope of work. 
3) For consideration, approval of the HACH estimate for the ChemScan upgrade at the 

WWTP. 
a. The Board previously approved a similar upgrade at the WTP. This was 

included as an asset project for the WWTP in the FY 23 budget.  
4) For consideration, approval of Resolution 2023-01 bond reduction request for the 

Irishtown Road project. 
5) For approval, designation of the second tranche of the American Rescue Plan 

monies. 
6) For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2023-03 amendment to Title 16 changes 

to subdivision fees. 
a. This ordinance will amend subdivision, plan review and annexation, forest 

conservation procedures related to fees. 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 2 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

7) For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2023-02 amendment to Title 17 changes 
to zoning fees. 

a. This ordinance will amend the collection process for zoning fees. 
M. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: MARCH 6, 2023 

 

4. SIGN APPROVED TEXT AMENDMENTS AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
5. ADJOURN 

 

 

Zoom Link: 

 

When: Jan 18, 2023 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)  

 

Register in advance for this meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZIqceCqrjgsGNTrnAT6g0Z5g-sYfzIhZrsO  

 

  



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 3 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

A. APPROVE MINUTES 
 

MINUTES 
TOWN MEETING 

DECEMBER 6, 2022 
TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

 
Present:  Elected Officials - Mayor Donald Briggs; Commissioners: Timothy O’Donnell, President; 
Joseph Ritz III, Vice President; Clifford Sweeney, Treasurer, Frank Davis; and Amy Boehman-Pollitt. 
Staff Present - Cathy Willets, Town Manager; Sabrina King, Town Clerk; Cole Tabler, Accounting 
Supervisor; Reese Fryer, Recorder. Others Present – Deputy Jason Ahalt; Clark Adams, Town 
Attorney Associate. 
 
 Call to Order  
A quorum being present, Commissioner Timothy O’Donnell, President of the Board of 
Commissioners, called the November 21st, 2022 town meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Upcoming meetings were announced. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the November 7, 2022 town meeting minutes as modified; 
second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was accepted.  
 
Commissioner Ritz motioned to accept the November 21, 2022 town meeting minutes; second by 
Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was accepted. 
 
Police Report: 
Deputy Ahalt presented the police report from October 2022 (exhibit attached).  
 
Town Managers Report: 
Ms. Willets, Town Manager, presented the Manager’s Report from October 2022 (exhibit in agenda 
packet). Ms. Willets highlighted key points in her report and noted that at the time of the report, 
Rainbow Lake was 1.8’ feet below the spillway level. As of today it is 14.5 feet or 2.1 feet below the 
spillway level and would like to continue with phase 1 voluntary water restrictions. 
 
Grant Administrative Report: 
Ms. Willets, Town Manager, presented Ms. Shaw’s Grants Administrative Report. Highlighted the 
current grants that are taking place along with future projects. 
 
Town Planners Report:  
The Town Planner’s Report from October 2022 (exhibit attached).  
 
 
Commissioner Comments:  

• Commissioner Amy Boehman-Pollitt: She attended the Tree Lighting Ceremony which she 
explained that she enjoyed the music and seeing the Community. She also liked the connection 
the Town had with Ukraine. Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt felt that it was touching and 
moving and thought it brought the Community together. She gave her thanks to the Town Staff 
and all who participated to make it happen. 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 4 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

• Commissioner Davis: He also attended the Tree Lighting Ceremony along with the other 
program at the Carriage House. He gave his thanks to the Field family for their part at the 
Carriage House and wished everyone a happy holiday season.  

• Commissioner Sweeney: He attended the programs for the Christmas Tree Lighting and the 
Carriage House.  

• Commissioner Ritz III: No comment. 
• Commissioner O’Donnell: He wished everyone a Merry Christmas. He briefly commented that, 

2022 has been a dynamic year with reopening the Community and moving forward with 
staffing. He went on to speak about how successful the Turkey Trot was. They had raised an 
excessive $850.00 for the Seton Center; North County outreach program. Commissioner 
O’Donnell thanked the Mayor, the Board, Town Staff, Vigilant Hose Company, Deputies, Fire 
Police Volunteers and handful of other volunteers that helped make it possible. He mentioned 
the trails were growing in popularity this year as defined in their increase of usage.   

 
Mayor’s Comments:  
Mayor Briggs hoped everyone had a blessed Thanksgiving. He attended numerous meetings (exhibit 
attached). On Veterans Day, November 11th at 11am the honor guard fought the weather and went to 
St. Josephs and American Legion. He attended a “Ukrainian Icons” lecture with Kateryna Dovgan at 
Mount St. Mary’s. He met with Ms. Shaw for the Town wayside exhibits and went to Mother Seton 
School for the 4th grade presentation. He and Conrad Weaver met with Michael Zhorvin who will take 
the Sister City Proclamation over to Ukraine to the Mayor. He also attended the Christmas Tree 
Lighting Ceremony and thanked all who was a part of the program and who made it happen.   
 
Public Comments: Eric Sloane, Emmitsburg MD- He spoke about the maintenance work in the Town 
that needs to be done before there are no funds left to take care of those issues. Rebecca Ness, 
Emmitsburg MD- She has advocated for the No Parking Signs on Irishtown Road and glad they are 
there. She knows there are some home owners that still abuse this and park in the bike lane. Her 
concern is the no parking signs that are on Brookfield Drive between Timbermill Rd and Carrick Ct. 
She said that strip is used for the overflow for Pembrook. She expressed that the road is not wide 
enough to park, so home owners would use part of Irishtown Rd to park. Since the no parking signs 
have been put up, she is confused on why the whole road has been eliminated for all. She does not 
recall that being mentioned, and now homeowners that are in Carrick Ct or Pembrook have to park in 
the swale. Ms. Ness also mentioned 3115 Stonehurst Ct. was recently bought in August of 2022, the 
Board and Mr. Clagget who is the HOA consultant, was aware that the gentlemen who bought this 
home was to be used as his residence. This was brought to their attention that he is not living there and 
he is actually renting the house out to college students. Dennis Ebaugh, Emmitsburg MD- He 
expressed his concerns about the corner at DePaul and North Seton. He knows that he has brought this 
issue to the Board in the past. Green Street North Seton Avenue program was going to address this, but 
from his understanding there’s no money for that program. He got the document from Zach Gulden 
and said it was a concept drawing. He disagrees with the MS4 and asked what happens if the Town 
does not pay it? He also had concerns about speeding on Irishtown Rd. He said the speed limit is 15 
mph and it looks like a racetrack. Mr. Ebaugh also mentioned when the State put the sidewalk in front 
of the church they took away the pipe and now the Church is in risk of flooding.  
 
Administrative Business: 
(1)  Mayor Briggs and Town Staff Recommendations: For the Holiday Season, free metered parking 
from Friday, December 9, 2022 to Tuesday, January 3, 2023. Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned 
to accept free metered parking; second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas –5; Nays – 0. The motion was 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 5 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
adopted. Recommendation for all monies collected will be donated to the Lions Club for Heritage Day 
Fireworks, the Friends of Emmitsburg Library and the Seton Center.  
 
(2)  Discussion related to using Farmer’s Market land for larger community garden plot. Commissioner 
Boehman-Pollitt gave background information from previous meetings with the Citizens Advisory 
Committee. Ms. Willets mentioned to keep in mind of the parking and there is no water access. 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt asked Mr. Deatherage about moving forward, in which he did not see 
a problem with this. Ms. Willets suggested that the Citizens Advisory could make a plan or suggestion 
to the staff and it can be brought back to the Board.  
 
(3) For consideration, Proclamation honoring Emmitsburg High School Volunteer. Motion: 
Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept the Proclamation for Joyce Bruchey; second by 
Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. 
     
Consent Agenda: 
Motion: The Board of Commissioners unanimously accepted to reappoint Diane Walbrecker to Board 
of Appeals with a term of December 15, 2022 to December 15, 2025; Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion 
was adopted. 
Motion: The Board of Commissioners unanimously accepted to appoint Jack Pollitt to the Parks and 
Recreation Committee with a term of December 6, 2022 to December 2, 2024; Yeas – 4; Nays – 0; 
Abstain (Boehman-Pollitt). The motion was adopted.  
Motion: The Board of Commissioners unanimously accepted the to appoint Valerie Turnquist an 
alternate to the Planning Commission with a term of December 6, 2022 to December 6, 2027; Yeas – 
5; Nays – 0.  
Motion: The Board of Commissioners unanimously accept to reappoint Mark Walker to the Citizen’s 
Advisory Committee with a term of November 7, 2022 to November 7, 2024. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The 
motion was adopted. 
 
 
Treasurer’s Report: 
Commissioner Sweeney presented the Treasurer’s Report for October 2022 (exhibit in agenda packet).  
 
Planning Commission Report: 
Commissioner Ritz III announced that they did not meet in November and were going to meet in 
December but the applicant was not ready, the next meeting will be January 30th, 2023. 
 
II. Agenda Items 
 
Agenda #1 – Hold a public hearing then consideration of Ordinance 2022-12 which would increase 
water and sewer rates over a three-year period. Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to close the 
town meeting at this moment to open the public hearing regarding Ordinance 2022-12 regarding the 
increase water and sewer rates over a three-year period; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt.  
 
Town Meeting closed at 8:26pm. 
Public hearing open at 8:26pm. 
 
Commissioner O’Donnell reviewed the process of how the public hearing will follow and asked those 
who will speak to please stand to be sworn in. Ms. Willets presented information about the water and 
sewer rates and how they got to where they are. A few key highlights are after two meetings the Board 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 6 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
gave direction of the 44% rate increase for the proposed water rates. After further investigating she 
explained that there are not enough fees or revenue to cover the cost for maintaining and improving the 
system. Ms. Willets noted that there have not been any increases for the average user in over 14 years. 
Rates for high end users were raised eight years ago. Ms. Willets also added that the outside consultant 
from NewGen Strategies, Michael Maker, began the process with the water rate study beginning in 
January 2022. After examining everything very carefully, they took into consideration the necessary 
improvements in the water infrastructure. Also after a preliminary engineer report the Town is lacking 
a fire flow capability. The contractor’s recommendation, which is now seconded by USDA, is to put in 
16-inch line and abandoned the 10-inch. Ms. Willets had noted that she has mentioned to the Board per 
USDA in FY 2021 they will not be able to offer the Town any funding until the water rates are 
increased. Due to USDA’s analysis of the system, the Town cannot afford the required maintenance 
cost of the current system. Ms. Willets spoke of the proposed rates that was advertised for the public, 
and explained the chart of the rate increase for each year for the users. Mr. Tabler added that the 14% 
increases are due to the sewer rate being increased significantly when the WWTP was constructed. 
Sewer rates are only being proposed to increase 3%. Commissioner Ritz wanted to clarify that there is 
a 3% rate increase each year, and the Board can decide to stop when it is necessary. After no further 
discussion Commissioner O’Donnell explained the procedures for public comment. 
 
Blaine Ridenour, Emmitsburg MD- He stated that he is opposed to a 40% rate increase. He isn’t 
disagreeing that there should be an increase. He questioned if Waynesboro Pike would have to a pay 
for a waterline like the residents do on Mountain View Road. Lastly, he asked why the Town 
purchases water from the Mount. 
 
Before moving forward Commissioner O’Donnell clarified the reason why the Town purchases water 
from the Mount is because it is to reserve the water line in case of an emergency.  
 
Dennis Ebaugh, Emmitsburg MD- He stated that he was confused by the numbers being presented 
because year one would be 44% and then following years would be 132%. He then pointed out the 
treasurer’s report and asked why money can’t be transferred.  
 
Staff provided information, that roughly $3.2 million is American Rescue Plan monies that are or will 
be designated solely for water/sewer infrastructure.  
 
Marty Miller, Emmitsburg MD- Commissioner Ritz spoke, and told the Board that he was unable to 
come due to an illness, but expressed to him that he was concerned with the rates and it’s a very drastic 
spread out over all the years. It will be a hardship on himself and others of the increase. 
 
John Howard, Emmitsburg MD- He stated that he felt the chart is unreadable and can’t understand it. 
He explained with a 14% increase residents will not be able to afford to live here and asked if there any 
programs for families that can provide assistance. He is also concerned about the businesses in Town 
because their bill will be higher than the residents. 
 
Lyn Miller, Emmitsburg MD- He asked the Board for answers, if the increase is going to be 14% or is 
it going to be 44% and to have more clarification. He would like to know before the next meeting on 
what the average house hold prices are and or lines being charged. Lastly, he requested a break down 
to know where the money is going.  
 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 7 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
Kevin Hagan, Emmitsburg Business Alliance- He stated, on behalf of the business community, that any 
increase to the bottom line cuts the viability. He knows that the majority of the businesses are small or 
single operator businesses.  
 
Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to close the public hearing and resume the town meeting; 
second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Public Hearing Close at 9:17 pm. 
 
Ms. Willets referred to the Ordinance 2022-12 of the proposed water and sewer rate increases. She 
briefly explained the new language that was corrected amongst other changes with the new rates and 
code corrections. (exhibit in agenda packet) Commissioner Davis asked about late bills, because he has 
had multiple people call him they did drop their payment on the due date. But was still charged a late 
fee because it was not put in the drop box by 4pm. Ms. Willets informed the Board of how Staff 
processes all water bill payments and what is considered on time or late. Commissioner O’Donnell 
asked Mr. Hagan to speak about the concerns of the Ordinance. 
 
Kevin Hagan, Business Alliance- He stated if the Ordinance could be re-written on page 3 related to 
the three-year period. He asked if it could begin in FY 2025 since businesses are still recovering from 
Covid. 
 
Commissioner Sweeney stated how he has been with the Town for 23 years and apologizes for not 
raising any rates those years ago. He said that when it came to the Board to make a decision they did 
not want to burden the families. He knows in order to pay for the maintenances, up keeps and the 
future projects that the increase has to happen. He stated that if they do not raise them now that the 
Town will be worse than what they are now. 
 
Commissioner Ritz III agrees with Commissioner Sweeney that the Town is in a bind. He stated 
another alternative as he is uncomfortable with the proposed rate increase. He knows that this increase 
will cause hardship on families. He also understands that they have to look down the road, but is not 
overly comfortable on what they are voting on as the whole package rate wise. 
 
Commissioner Davis would like to see this be stretched out further and make the increase less per year. 
He said the Town is trying to fix a twenty-year problem in three years. He also suggested to tighten the 
general budget and help offset with that. He also has concerns about the Town putting money out for 
grants in order to receive them. 
 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt asked staff about the proposed rates if they do not take effect in 
January how would this set the Town back?  
 
Ms. Willets responded that the Town will not reach the 90-day fund at the end of the three years and it 
will continue to extend. Ms. Willets reminded the Board of how fortunate they are to receive grants 
and funding due to the competitiveness and hopes the Town never gets in a position where they cannot 
get funding. She wants the Town to be in a position where they can pay out of pocket rather than 
relying on grants or funding.  
 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt asked about the USDA funding and if there are any specifics on what 
would be a considerable increase for them to assist the Town? 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 8 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
 
Ms. Willets said, USDA looked at the Town’s budget two years ago from another project because the 
revenues and budget could not sustain the payments. She was told by USDA that they need to know 
that the town is making head way towards improvements.  
 
Commissioner O’Donnell stated that other Municipalities are functioning and not functioning while 
providing services for their Community. The Town has a responsibility to create a safe and viable 
community and to protect those things. The hard reality is that this has been kicked down the road 
again and again, and the situation is not improving. Commissioner O’Donnell asked Staff, if there is 
any system that is critical, relating to the safety?  
 
Ms. Willets explained that the contractor who did the preliminary report said that the fire flow was 
lacking in Town. USDA, along with the contractor who completed the Preliminary Engineering 
Report, recommended to abandon the fifty-year old ten-inch line and add a new 16” main line to 
Town. She added that there are multiple lines that are in need for replacements through Town and that 
are in bad condition with tuberculation. Commission O’Donnell briefly explained the hard decision 
that is in front of the Board.  
 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt agrees there has to be an increase and something has to happen. She 
stated her concerns about the resources in Town for those that need it and a breakdown of the 
formatting of the bill for over 10,000 gallons. 
 
Ms. Willets informed the Board that there are multiple resources that can help residents and the 
information can be found on the Town website along with a page dedicated on how to breakdown the 
water/sewer bill. 
 
Mayor Briggs reminded the Board that Staff has gathered the information needed to present to them. 
The Board has to make the decision based off that information. He stated that the consultant was hired 
because he could go to other Towns and gather viable information needed. He explained the reason 
behind the new equipment and the safety hazard for employees and the environment. He stated that the 
Town began funding equipment and paving the in the Capital Improvements Fund at a rate of 
$100,000 per year. Mayor Briggs noted that the Town does not put in as much now, but still continues 
to put funds in. He explained the Town has 3.2 million dollars all going to the programs for the 
water/sewer. Mayor Briggs informed the Board that the Town has been cutting back and has tighten 
the belt as much as it can. He explained that even though the property tax did increase in value the 
yield factor dropped. He knows that the water should have been increased in previous years but there 
were always problems that arise. He stated the reason why residents with vacant lots pay for trash and 
the minimum six thousand gallons. He explained that it is because it helps the residents in Town to 
keep it lower for everyone and that everyone has to contribute for the fixed cost. Mayor Briggs 
acknowledges that the Town has received many grants since having a Grants Administrator. He spoke 
about the attributes the Town holds and how important it is for the community to come together and 
help those that do need it. He thanked Staff on their presentation on his behalf. Mayor Briggs stated 
that he liked some of the ideas that were mentioned, and explained that ten percent won’t help catch 
up. He reminded the Board to take care of the people the best they can. 
 
Commissioner O’Donnell turned to the Board, and asked who would be on agreement for a modified 
rate increase. Staff suggested if the Board can give direction, since they prepared what the Board 
instructed to do at the last meeting. Being that it is not what is wanted. Commissioner Sweeney 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 9 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
clarified that it was just for the water and not for the sewer, and that the sewer will stay at the 3%. Ms. 
Willets recommended the Board have multiple proposed rates, of 25% and 30%.  
 
Motion to direct staff to return with water rate numbers showing 10 %, 25% and a 30% rate increase 
where the 10% is the flat rate applied to all users.   
 
Ms. Willets told the Board that this will not happen at the next town meeting on January 9th. It will 
give Staff enough time to have in the February 6th meeting. 
 
Consent with the direction for Staff for a modification of the water bill rate. Yeas; 5, Nays; 0. 
 
Mayor Briggs stepped away at 10:38 pm 
Mr. Tabler left at 10:38 pm. 
Mr. Clark; Town Attorney took the chair at 10:40 pm. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to approve to table approval of Ordinance 2022-12 until the 
February 6th meeting; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was 
approved. 
 
Agenda #2 – For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2022-13 which would change Board of 
Commissioners meeting to 7:00pm. Staff presented the following item to the Board and added that on 
behalf of the Mayor and herself, if holiday falls on a Monday, then the meeting will fall on the 
following Monday. Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to approve the Ordinance 2022-13; 
second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 4; Nays – 1; Nay – 1 (O’Donnell). The motion was approved. 
 
Commissioner Davis suggested to switch Agenda Item #3 and #4. Staff has no problem to move them. 
 
Agenda #4 – For discussion and consideration, an offer from Richard Lindsay to purchase three acres 
from the Town of Emmitsburg located near the WWTP. Ms. Willets presented the agenda item with 
background information to where they are now. She also read from the agenda packet the proposed 
amount offered from Richard Lindsay. (attachment in agenda). 
 
Mayor Briggs returned at 10:43 pm.  
 
Mayor Briggs spoke and that the Town wants to sell it even though the Ms. Powell suggests to lease. 
He would like to sell the property to Richard Lindsay. Someone else was interested in the property but 
for industrial purposes which is how they came up with the figures. Mayor knows he can’t give a price, 
but looking for the board to either sell or retain to lease. 
 
Mr. Clark added the Town would be better served to continue to an agricultural lease at market value 
rather than selling.  
 
Richard Lindsay did speak on behalf of his proposal and background history of how he has maintained 
the land. Thanked the Mayor for speaking on his behalf. 
 
After a lengthy discussion on pricing and who would be responsible for the survey fees. Mr. Lindsay 
offered to pay the survey cost, if the Town would accept his offer. Clarification, the 3 acres would then 
belong to Mr. Lindsay which would be outside of Town limits.  



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 10 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
 
Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept the offer of $18,000.00 for the three-acre parcel 
located between the WWTP and property at 16737 Creamery Road, and that the purchaser pay for the 
survey of this parcel, the Town will be responsible for all other associated cost; second by 
Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 3; Nays – 1; Abstain – 1. (Nays – O’Donnell; Abstain – Boehman-
Pollitt) The motion was adopted. 
 
Agenda #3- For consideration, approval of the three-year sewer relining bid. Ms. Willets presented the 
agenda item with past history from the previous three-year sewer relining. She then went over the 
process of how Staff chose the top four bids. She briefly explained the break-down of the bids with the 
pricing and experience. Staff recommends Guyer Brothers because of the ten-year warranty and 
explained they do not use chemicals. Guyer Brothers uses Thermoform, which is environmental 
friendly option.  
 
Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to accept the approval of the three-year sewer relining bid; 
second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Commissioner Davis stepped out at 11:29 pm. 
 
Agenda #5– For consideration, approval of revertible forest conservation easement with Daughters of 
Charity. A) The Daughters of Charity is providing the Town a 9.2013- acre revertible forest 
conservation easement to the Town in order to plan trees for the 2023-2028 MS-4 permitting term. 
Parcel located on East side of US 15.  
 
Ms. Willets stepped out at 11:30 pm. 
 
Mr. Clark gave the presentation, referring to page sixty-eight in the agenda packet. He gave specifics 
from the easement and how similar it is to another one for this exact property. He referred to page 
seventy-five of the packet with the maintenance agreement. 
 
Commissioner Davis returned at 11:31 pm. 
Ms. Willets returned at 11:32 pm. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the revertible forest conservation easement of 
Daughters of Charity; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was 
adopted. 
 
Agenda #6- For consideration, amending the hours of the Farmer’s Market. Commissioner Boehman-
Pollitt explained the challenges that the residents and vendors face that cannot make the current time. 
After further discussion the Board agreed to extend only the time and keep the current day as Friday. 
Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept amending the hours of the Farmer’s Market from 
2:00 pm to 8:00 pm; second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Agenda #7- For consideration, approval the Amendment to Loan and Financing agreement for the 
extension of credit made to the Vigilant Hose Company of Emmitsburg as the successor by merger to 
the Emmitsburg Volunteer Ambulance Co. WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT 
 
Set Agenda Items for January 9th 2023 Town Meeting 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 11 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
 
Agenda Items: 
For consideration, approval of Bearing Construction change order for removal of trees on dam at the 
Silo Hill Basin. (A) Mandatory requirement from Frederick County Soil Conservation per MDE 
guidelines (2.) For consideration, approval of agreement with Barton and Loguidice for Silo Hill Basin 
tree removal engineering services. (3) For consideration, approval of the HACH estimate for the 
ChemScan upgrade at the WWTP. (A) The Board previously approved a similar upgrade at the WTP. 
This was included as an asset project for the WWTP in the FY 23 budget. (4) For consideration, 
approval of Resolution 2023-01 bond reduction request for the Irishtown Road project. (5) For 
approval, designation of the second tranche of the American Rescue Plan monies. (6) For 
consideration, approval of Ordinance 2023-03 amendment to Title 16 changes to subdivision fees. (A) 
This Ordinance will amend subdivision, plan review and annexation, forest conservation procedures 
related to fees. (7) For consideration, approval or Ordinance 2023-02 amendment to Title 17 changes 
to zoning fees. (A) This Ordinance will amend the collection process for zoning fees. Administrative 
Business: (1.) Appointment of Melissa Mckenney to the Citizen Advisory Committee with a term of 
January 9, 2023 to January 9, 2025. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept the December 6, 2022 town meeting agenda as 
presented; second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
III. Sign Approved Text Amendments and/or Resolutions  
 
IV.  Adjournment 
 With no further business, Commissioner Sweeney motioned to adjourn the December 6th, 2022, 
2022 town meeting at 11:45 p.m.; second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas – 5; Nays - 0. The motion 
was adopted. 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 Sabrina King, Town Clerk  
 Minutes Approved On:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 12 of 69 
January 18, 2023 
 

MINUTES 
TOWN MEETING 

DECEMBER 12TH  2022 
TOWN OFFICE - 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

 
Present: Elected Officials - Commissioners: Timothy O'Donnell, President; Joseph Ritz Ill, Vice 
President; Clifford Sweeney, Treasurer, Frank Davis; and Amy Boehman-Pollitt. Staff Present - Cathy 
Willets, Town Manager; Sabrina King, Town Clerk. Others Present- Amanda Haddaway, HR 
Consultant; and Chris Jakubiak, Town Planner Consultant. 

 

 

I. Call to Order 
A quorum being present, Commissioner Timothy O'Donnell, President of the Board of 
Commissioners, called the December 12th, 2022 town meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Upcoming meetings were announced. 

Announcement of a Closed Session 

President O'Donnell announced the need for a closed executive session following adjournment of the 
December 12, 2022 town meeting for the purpose of consulting with staff, consultants, or other 
individuals to discuss the proposed employment of the candidate for the Town Planner. The authority 
for meeting in closed session for this purpose is permitted by the General Provisions Article Section 3-
305 (b)(l), Annotated Code of Maryland which authorizes us to meet in closed session to discuss 
employment. The Board of Commissioners will not be meeting in another open session after the closed 
session has ended. 

Public Comments: No public comment. 
 
Il. Agenda Items 

Agenda #1 — Closed executive session to consult with staff, consultants or other individuals to 
discuss the proposed candidate for the Town Planner.  

Announcement of a Closed Session 

President O'Donnell announced the need for a closed executive session following adjournment of the 
December 12, 2022 town meeting for the purpose of consulting with staff, consultants, or other 
individuals to discuss the proposed employment of the candidate for the Town Planner. The authority 
for meeting in closed session for this purpose is permitted by the General Provisions Article, Section 
3-305 (b)(l), Annotated Code of Maryland which authorizes us to meet in closed session to discuss 
employment. The Board of Commissioner will not be meeting in another open session after the closed 
session has ended. 



Emmitsburg Town Meeting  Page 13 of 69 
December 12, 2022 
 

IV. Adjournment 
With no further business, Commissioner Ritz motioned to close the December 12, 2022 town 
meeting at 7:06 pm for a closed executive session to consult with counsel, consult with staff, 
consultants or other individuals to discuss the proposed employment of the candidate for the 
Town Planner, as permitted by the General Provisions Article, Section 3-305(b)(1); second by 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas — 5; Nays —0. The motion was adopted. to adjourn the 
December 12 town meeting at 7:06 p.m.; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas — 5; 
Nays - 0. The motion was adopted.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 Sabrina King, Town Clerk 

 Approved On: 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 14 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

B. POLICE REPORT 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 15 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Town Manager’s Report 

November 2022 

Prepared by Cathy Willets  

 

Streets: 
• Staff replaced and repaired some street signs around town.  
• Staff conducted monthly street sweeping. 
• Staff repaired street lights. 
• Staff conducted monthly storm drain inlet cleaning. 
• Staff put flags on street light poles and around square as well as section of East & West 

Main St. for Veteran’s Day. 
• Staff put up Christmas decorations on street light poles on East & West Main St. as well 

as North & South Seton Ave. 
 

 Parks: 
• Staff conducted daily park checks – trash cans, cameras, dog waste stations, restrooms. 
• Staff conducted monthly park maintenance – playground equipment, roads, fences, 

pavilions, etc.  
• Staff mowed, trimmed and weed killed in parks. 
• Staff winterized Memorial Park restroom building, concession stand, and the dog park in 

E. Eugene Myers Park. 
• Contractor removed the sunshades from the ADA playground equipment in E. Eugene 

Myers Park. 

Water: 

• Rainbow Lake is 2.1’ below the spillway level (14.5 feet).  Spillway is 16.6 feet. 
• The roughing filters are being backwashed four times a day.  The DE filters are getting one 

week runs. 
• Well levels (optimum level was determined to be May 2011).  

 
 May 2011  November Change 

o Well #1:   35’  43’   -8’           
o Well #2:   8’  19’   -11’              
o Well #3:   12’  34’  -22’           
o Well #4:   108’  OFF’  N/A        
o Well #5:   10’  OFF’  N/A 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 16 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 
• Water production and consumption.  We produced an average of 227,364 GPD.  We 

consumed an average of 241,775 GPD (finish water + MSM).  The amount of Backwash 
Water in the month of November is ... (18.1%).  
 

• 42.63% of this water came from wells. 
• 5.21% of this water came from Mt. St. Mary's. 
• 52.16% of this water came from Rainbow Lake.  

 
We purchased 432,350 gallons of water from MSM this month.  
 
Wastewater: 

 We treated an average of 409,017 gpd (consumed 241,775 GPD) which means that   
40.89% of the wastewater treated this month was "wild water".  This reflects lagoon 
pump and not all weather related. 

 We had no spills of untreated sewage in the month of November. 
 We exceeded the plant’s design capacity 13 times in the month of November due to 

the pumping down of lagoons (nothing to do with weather or I&I). 
 We received about 4.5” of precipitation this month (the average is 3.61”).   We have a 

precipitation SURPLUS of 1.53” over the last six months.  The average precipitation 
for the period from June 1 through November 30 is 22.22“.  We have received 
23.75“for that period.   

 
Trash:  Trash pickup will remain Mondays in the month of January. 
  
Meetings Attended: 

• 11/01 Conducted interviews with HR, Dir of PW for the parking/code enforcement 
officer position. 

• 11/02 Met with Mayor. 
• 11/03 Conducted interviews with HR, Dir of PW for the parking/code enforcement 

officer position. 
• 11/04  Attended DNR webinar re: grants for MS/4 and stormwater. 
• 11/04  Conference call with Town attorney re: outstanding projects and code 

enforcement. 
• 11/07 Attended Town Meeting. 
• 11/08  Conference call with Town Attorney, staff and Federal Stone re: project updates. 
• 11/08 Conducted interviews with HR, Town Clerk for office coordinator position. 
• 11/15 Conducted FY23 first quarter budget review with staff. 
• 11/15  Conducted interviews with HR, Town Clerk for office coordinator position. 
• 11/18 Call with StreamLink re: FY23 tree plantings for MS-4 permit. 
• 11/21 Conference call with Town Attorney, PNC, staff and VHC regarding previous 

bond. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 17 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

• 11/21 Attended Town Meeting. 
• 11/22 Met with Town of Thurmont’s code enforcement officer. 
• 11/28 Conducted interviews with HR, Mayor, Planning Consultant for planner position. 

  
Noteworthy: 

• Staff pumps holding tank every 10 days at 8533 Hampton Valley Rd. 
• Staff worked the yard waste dumpster twice in November. 
• Staff conducted monthly equipment and fire extinguisher maintenance. 
• Staff did some water meter upgrades. 
• Staff completed some use and occupancy permit inspections.  
• Staff conducted quarterly water meter readings. 
• Staff worked with contractor at 4 Reeney Circle. Staff dug up and replaced curb box. 
• Contractor repaired two storm drain inlets on Federal Ave.by East Main St. 
• Staff dug up and found curb box to 228 DePaul St. 
• Staff had CPR training at Town Office. 
• Jared completed superintendent training required by the State. 
• Water/Sewer staff completed their MDE training for sediment control. 
• Staff replaced the gate at rainbow lake and install new chain entrance at wells 3 & 5. 
• Staff trying to obtain estimates to make repairs to lagoon at WWTP. 
• Staff pumped down lagoons in anticipation of pending hurricane in November.  
• Water leak at WWTP plant.  Staff obtaining estimates to repair. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 18 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

As of January 4, 2023 
Grants Administrator Report 

Prepared By: Madeline Shaw, Grants Administrator 
 
ACTIVE GRANTS (12 TOTAL) 
#22-1, USDA New Public Works Equipment for $168,900 (match of $128,500) 

• For purchase of a 4x4 work truck, backhoe loader, multi-user tractor, WWTP SCADA. 
• Status - Backhoe and multi-use tractor delivered. SCADA completed. Waiting on work 

truck to be delivered; delayed to Feb. 2023 now. Once all invoices are received final 
report will be submitted.  

#22-5, GOCCP Edward J. Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (BJAG) for $98,544 (no match) 
• For purchase/installation of 3 license plate readers & 3 surveillance cameras. 
• Status – DONE. All three ALPRs are operational and connected to the Maryland State 

Police hotlist. 2 surveillance cameras installed, 3rd no longer being pursued due to budget 
constraints and difficulty obtaining agreement with property owner. Final grant report to 
be submitted by Jan. 31. 

#22-6, POS New Bathroom/Concession Stand for $147,980 ($89,000 match) 
#22-7, LPPI New Bathroom/Concession Stand for $40,000 (no match) 

• For construction of a new bathroom/concession stand combo building in Community 
Park. 

• Status – Engineer submitting site plan to Frederick County any day now. Need to order pre-
fabricated building, then hire contractor to prepare site for delivery 
(water/sewer/electrical/stone pad.  

USDA Creamery Road Pump Station Replacement $863,000 grant, $1,987,000 loan 
• For replacement of Creamery Road Pump Station will new station. 
• Status – waiting on USDA to approve final design and project for bid. A lot of time spent 

in December sending the USDA a long list of documents in preparation for this. 
Continuing to submit monthly reports to USDA too. 

#23-1, TRIPP Historic Walking Tour and Visit Emmitsburg Website for $9,750 ($9,750 match) 
• For creation of a tri-fold brochure with walking tour map and creation of 

VisitEmmitsburg website that would include things to do in area and walking tour. 
• Status – DONE. VisitEmmitsburg.com website went live Nov. 21. Brochure printed and 

delivered across County mid-December. Final grant report submitted 01/04. 
#23-2, TRIPP Emmitsburg Advertising for $2,963 ($1,481 match) 

• For advertising Emmitsburg in Celebrate Gettysburg, Visit Frederick and Montgomery 
Magazine. 

• Status – waiting to run ads in spring/summer 2023. First ad to be run in March 2023. 
#23-4, CP&P Silo Hill Playground Improvements for $146,263 (no match) 

• To replace old swing set and playground tower and install half basketball court. 
• Status – State fully approved grant. Purchase order sent to contractor for work 08/25. 

Installation to occur end of January 2023. Pre-construction meeting to occur week of Jan. 
9th. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 19 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

#23-8, MEA Streetlight & Outdoor Lighting Efficiency Pilot for $27,500 (15% of total project cost 
match) 
#23-10, USDA Downtown Streetlight Replacement for $75,000 
#23-11, USDA Downtown Streetlight Replacement for $50,000 

• Replace 102 streetlights along Main Street / Seton Avenue with new LED dimmable 
cutoff lights. 

• Status – waiting on DHCD Operating Assistance grant award in January and town budget 
transfer to fund entire project est. at $234,090.  
 

NEWLY AWARDED GRANTS 
#23-12, DHCD Business District and Neighborhood Safety Grant for $85,000 submitted 10/21/22 

• Purchase two portable radar speed trailers and two surveillance cameras for town square. 
#23-3, DHCD Community Legacy Façade Improvements FY2023 for $50,000 

• Provide property owners in sustainable community’s district with 50/50 funds to fix-up 
property 

• Status – applications were due by Dec. 31 to town office. Need to schedule meeting with 
sustainable community committee and new town planner to determine what projects will 
be funded.  

 
PENDING GRANTS (WAITING FOR ANNOUNCEMENT) (14 TOTAL) 
#23-5, POS Rainbow Lake Parking Lot for $70,000 ($37,500 match) 

• For SWM plan and to pave a 10 to 12 space parking lot at Rainbow Lake. 
#23-6, POS Community Park Cornhole for $6,000 ($2,00 match) 

• For installing two pairs of permanent concrete cornhole boards in Community Park. 
#23-7, POS Outdoor Storybook Trail for $8,250 ($2,750 match) 

• For installation of 30 single pedestal exhibits that would display exchangeable storybook 
pages. 

DHCD Operating Assistance Grant – Main Street Improvement Grant for $10,000  
• Replace 102 streetlights along Main Street / Seton Avenue with new LED dimmable 

cutoff lights. 
MWQFA Drinking Water Revolving Loan and/or Water Supply Grant for $2,255,552 submitted 
01/31/22 

1. North Seton Avenue waterline replacement $1,145,552 
2. DePaul Street waterline replacement $1,110,000 

DNR Local Parks and Playgrounds Infrastructure Grant FY2023 – 4 Totaling $100,000 submitted 07/06/22 
1. Rainbow Lake Parking Lot to cover remainder of funds needed for project $44,500 
2. Community Park Pavilion Improvements to rehab pavilion and replace tables $30,500 
3. Memorial Park Pavilion Improvements to rehab pavilions and replace tables $22,000 
4. Baseball Bat/Helmet Racks to purchase racks for remaining 3 ballfields $3,000 

DNR Community Parks and Playgrounds FY2024 – 2 Totaling $120,686 submitted 08/24/22 
1. Install half basketball court in Memorial Park $15,000 
2. Install playground addition via Timber Stacks play equipment in Memorial Park 

$105,686 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 20 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

KMB Citizen Stewardship Grant for $5,000 submitted 11/14/2022 
• Purchase 4 pet waste stations and 3 recycling containers to be installed at various areas in 

Town. 
State Aid for Police Protection (SAPP) FY2024, submitted 12/13/2022 
 
UPCOMING GRANTS (TO APPLY FOR) 

1. MEA Streetlight & Outdoor Lighting Efficiency Pilot FY2023, due 01/13/2023 
o Fund a portion of streetlight replacement in developments 

2. Maryland Water Infrastructure Financing Administration FY2024, due 01/31/2023 
o Funds to replace 10-inch distribution main with 16-inch main for fire flow 

compliance 
3. Chesapeake Bay Trust Green Streets (G3) grant, due around March 2023 

o Funds to complete improvement plan & partial construction for N. Seton Green 
Street & waterline replacement. 

4. TRIPP Tourism Grant, due around March 2023 
o Funds to obtain wayfinding signage 

5. Community Development Block Grant, due around June 2023 
o Fund remaining DePaul Street waterline replacement as needed 

6. Parking meter money grant – looking for funding 
7. And other grants as funding is found 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 21 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT 
 

 

Town Planner Report 
 
 
To: Board of Town Commissioners 
From: Christopher Jakubiak, AICP 
Date: January 4, 2023 
Re: Update on Open Projects 
 
 
 

1. The Federal Stone company is proposing changes to its previously approved 
preliminary site plan at Creamery Court to reflect a proposed new building 
format and footprint and related changes to the site. The matter will be 
addressed at the January 30, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting.  
 

2. Rutters fuel station and convenience store is proposing an amendment to its 
approved site plan to remove a forest conservation easement. If approved by 
the Planning Commission, this would allow the removal of some of the trees on 
the property that are now protected by the easement.  

 
3. The January 30, 2023 meeting agenda would include the Planning Commission’s 

deliberations on a draft zoning text amendment to address the placement of 
boundary fences along the street sides of corner lots. The Planning Commission 
will be asked to formulate and transmit a recommendation to the Board of Town 
Commissioners. 
 

4. The Daughters of Charity Ministries, Seaton Village Property has advanced in its 
efforts to formally re-plat its property, which would create two legal lots for 
purposes related to ownership. This is a technical plat change and I have 
advised the surveyor on the Town’s plat requirements and procedures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 22 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

E. COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F. MAYORS COMMENTS 
 

   Presentation at Town meeting. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 23 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H. ADMINSTRATIVE BUSINESS (NONE) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I. CONSENT AGENDA(NONE) 
   

1. Appointment of Melissa Mckenney to the Citizen Advisory Committee with 
a term of January 9, 2023 to January 9, 2025. 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 24 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

J. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 25 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

L. AGENDA ITEMS 
  

  AGENDA ITEM #1: For consideration, approval of Bearing Construction change  
  order for removal of trees on dam at the Silo Hill Basin. 

a) Mandatory requirement from Frederick County Soil Conservation per 
MDE guidelines. 

    

   Presentation at the meeting by Town Staff. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 26 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 27 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 28 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 29 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #2: For consideration, approval of agreement with Barton and Loguidice for 
             Silo Hill Basin tree removal engineering services. 

a) Part of the change order request that was not in the initial scope of 
work. 

    

   Presentation at the meeting by Town Staff. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 30 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 31 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 32 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 33 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 34 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 35 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 36 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 37 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 38 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 39 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 40 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 41 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 42 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM #3: For consideration, approval of the HACH estimate for the ChemScan  
             upgrade at the WWTP. 

a) The Board previously approved a similar upgrade at the WTP. This 
was included as an asset project for the WWTP in the FY 23 
budget. 

    

   Presentation at the town meeting by Staff 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 43 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 44 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 45 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 46 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 47 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 48 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 49 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 50 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 51 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #4: For consideration, approval of Resolution 2023-01 bond reduction request 
             for the Irishtown Road project. 

   Presentation at town meeting by Town Staff. 

 

   **As-builts were received in the Town Office on 11/29/2022 satisfying  
   item #28. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 52 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

A RESOLUTION 

APPROVING THE FULL RELEASE OF BOND AL102580 

FOR IRISHTOWN ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

 

****************************************************************************** 

The Mayor and Board of Commissioners of the Town of Emmitsburg, Maryland, pursuant to the authority 
granted to them by the laws of Maryland and the Charter of the Town of Emmitsburg, this 18th day of 
January 2023, hereby find that:  

WHEREAS, R.J.D. Development Corporation contracted and agreed to furnish certain improvements to 
Irishtown Road pursuant to certain improvement plans and as security to ensure its proper performance of 
such improvements furnished a Performance Surety Bond No. AL- 102580 (“Bond”) to the Town of 
Emmitsburg in the amount of $709,204.25 plus a fifteen percent (15%) contingency in the amount of 
$106,380.64; and  

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2022, the Town of Emmitsburg reduced the principal amount of the bond to 
$125,343.10 upon the completion of the improvements identified on Exhibit A, attached hereto, as items 
one through seventeen (1-17), twenty-one through twenty-seven (21-27), twenty-nine through thirty-one 
(29-31), thirty-eight (38), and forty-one (41); and 

WHEREAS, R.J.D. Development Corporation has completed all the remaining improvements on the 
attached Exhibit A, identified as items eighteen through twenty (18-20), twenty-eight (28), thirty-two 
through thirty-seven (32-37), thirty-nine (39), and forty (40) therein; and  

WHEREAS, Geotechnical Laboratories, Inc., G. Matthew Norris, RK&K, Rob Linthicum and Town 
staff have inspected such work and found it to be in conformance with the plans as described in the 
certification attached as Exhibit B hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Emmitsburg has determined that a full release of the Bond is appropriate; it is  

 

HEREBY RESOLVED, ENACTED AND ORDAINED THAT:  

 

a) The improvements numbered one through forty-one (1-41) are hereby APPROVED and 
ACCEPTED; and 

b) That a full release of the Bond shall be GRANTED. 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 53 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY enacted this 18th day of January, 2023 by the Mayor and Board 
of Commissioners, that Resolution Number 2023 – 01R is true, correct, and duly adopted by the Mayor 
and Board of Commissioners of the Town of Emmitsburg. 

 
PASSED this 18th day of January, 2023 by a vote of: 

 
Commissioners: For Against Absent Abstain 
O’Donnell     
Ritz III     
Sweeney     
Davis     
Boehman-Pollitt     
TOTAL:     

 
 
ATTEST:      EMMITSBURG BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
 
 
 
    
   

Sabrina King, Town Clerk  Timothy J. Donnell, President 
 

_______APPROVED    _______VETOED 
 

this 18th day of January, 2023. 
 
 

________________________ 
Donald N. Briggs, Mayor 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 54 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 55 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 56 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #5: For approval, designation of the second tranche of the American Rescue 
             Plan monies. 

   Presentation at the town meeting by Town Staff. 

 

   American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Cornavirus Local Fiscal Recovery 
   Funds disbursement. 

• Town of Emmitsburg awarded a total of $ 3,152,038.92. 
• On 07/26/2021 the Town received the first tranche in the amount 

of $1,575,429.33. 
- The Board of Commissioners approved a designation of the 

monies to the water clarifier and pump station projects at the 
10/04/2021 town meeting. 

• On 08/10/2022 the Town received the second tranche in the amount 
of $1,576,608.99. 

• Allowable usages: 
- Support public health expenditures and address negative 

economic impacts. 
- Replace lost public sector revenue. 
- Provide premium pay for essential workers. 
- Invest in water, sewer and broadband infrastructure. 

 
   The Mayor and staff recommend the second tranche ($1,576,608.99) be 
   used for water infrastructure projects such as the 16” main water line.  
   Staff is applying for initial funding for this project in the spring. 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 57 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #6: For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2023-03 amendment to Title 16 
             changes to subdivision fees. 

a) This ordinance will amend subdivision, plan review and 
annexation, forest conservation procedures related to fees. 

     

   Presentation at the town meeting by Town Staff. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 58 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 59 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 60 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 61 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 62 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 63 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 64 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 65 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #7: For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2023-02 amendment to Title 17 
             changes to zoning fees. 

a) This ordinance will amend the collection process for zoning fees. 
 

   Presentation at the town meeting by Town Staff. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 66 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 67 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 68 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 69 of 69 
January 18, 2023 

 
 
 

M. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Administrative Business: 

A. 

B. 

C.  


